	
	
	



GFO-19-309: 
California Flexible Load Research and Deployment Hub
Questions and Answers
Administrative/General Questions
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.1
	When will a recording of this session be published?

	A.1
	A recording of the pre-application workshop can be found in the following link: https://www.energy.ca.gov/event/funding-workshop/2020-09/pre-application-workshop-gfo-19-309-california-flexible-load

	Q.2
	Can you publish the list of the zoom participants? 

	A.2
	Yes, the list of participants from the pre-application workshop can be found in the following link: https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-09/gfo-19-309-california-flexible-load-research-and-deployment-hub

	Q.3
	The solicitation manual states on page 28 that "“Match funds” do not include: CEC awards, EPIC funds received from other sources. . . " This means that IOU EPIC research funds (non-CEC) cannot be used as match.  Is that correct?

	A.3
	Correct. EPIC funds from the investor-owned utilities (IOUs) cannot be used as match funds for this solicitation.

	Q.4
	Are the IOUs exempt from applying or partnering in this GFO?

	A.4
	Though IOUs could apply to this GFO as a prime, they must explain how they can achieve and meet the requirements, objectives and focus of the hub as described in Section I of the solicitation manual (also known as GFO, or GFO manual). IOUs may be better suited to participate as project partners such as providing support in obtaining sites, accessing meter data, providing match funds, facilitating CPUC approvals, and contributing technical and program expertise.

	Q.5
	Are companies from outside the USA eligible to apply?

	A.5
	Yes, assuming participation is allowed by law, companies from outside of the USA are eligible to apply; however, Section III.D.7.7 of the GFO manual states that states EPIC funds must not be spent outside of the USA. Match funds must be used for activities outside of the USA. Additionally, funds spent outside of California will impact Scoring Criterion 6 in Section IV.F of the GFO manual. 

	Q.6
	Is it required to attend meetings in person?

	A.6
	Not for the time being. However, if the pandemic abates during the agreement term there may be instances where in-person meetings will be required, such as for site demonstrations and tests, meeting with team members or project partners, or conducting outreach to increase deployment.

	Q.7
	Can the tasks under this solicitation be performed outside of the USA?

	A.7
	It is highly desirable that all tasks be performed in California. For instance, all test and demonstration sites must be in California IOU service areas as indicated in Section IV.E., Screening Criterion 5. If tasks will be performed outside of California, the applicant must justify which tasks will be performed outside of the CA, why they cannot be performed in California, and how performing work outside of California will benefit its ratepayers. This must be explained in Attachment 3, Project Narrative, Impacts and Benefits to California IOU Ratepayers, item A. In addition, any work performed outside the U.S. would have to be allowed by law. 

	Q.8
	Can proposals be submitted via email?

	A.8
	No, proposal submissions by email are not allowed. Submissions must be made either through the CEC Grant Solicitation System (gss.energy.ca.gov) or by hard copy (paper and electronic on USB drive or CD-ROM) via U.S. Mail or Courier service, such as Federal Express or United Parcel Service, by the solicitation submission due date and time. Please refer to Section III of the GFO manual.

	Q.9
	Would non-profits supporting CCA's be excluded from receiving funding as would POU's?

	A.9
	No, non-profits supporting CCAs in IOU territories would not be excluded from receiving funds. However, POUs are not eligible to apply or receive EPIC funds as indicated in Section II.A.1. of the GFO manual.

	Q.10
	Can one also use the latest Opportunity Zones designations to identify 'low income'/'disadvantage' communities?

	A.10
	No. Applicants must use the CalEnviroScreen and the AB 523 mapping tool to determine if locations are in disadvantaged or low-income communities, respectively. Please refer to Section II.A.4. of the GFO manual.

	Q.11
	Can you provide more explanation on the funds spent in California scoring requirement?

	A.11
	The funds spent in California scoring requirement (Scoring Criterion 6 in Section IV.F.) designates what percent of the 10 total points will be awarded based on the percentage of CEC funds spent in CA versus the total CEC funds requested.  For instance, if you request $16 million in CEC grant funds and $12 million will be spent in California, then this equals 75% of CEC funds spent in CA.  Using the table in Criterion 6 will show that the applicant will receive 50% of the total available points or 5 points. The applicant will state how much of the requested EPIC funds will be spent in California on the Budget forms (Attachment 7).

	Q.12
	How long will awardees be required to operate the research hub? What other operational requirements are there?

	A.12
	Awardees are required to operate the research hub for the entire length of the grant agreement term. The maximum term is from May 2021 to March 31, 2025, as identified in Section I.E. See Section I of the GFO manual and the EPIC Terms and Conditions for all operational requirements.

	Q.13
	Are the match funds only required to be provided by the prime or are the subcontractors also eligible to contribute?

	A.13
	Match Funds can come from the prime, subcontractor, or other parties. Please see Section I.K and Section IV.F for more details on Match Funds. 

	Q.14
	Any preference for spending cost-share funds in CA or is there no preference as to where the cost-share funds are spent?

	A.14
	There is no preference as to where the cost-share funds are spent. However, these funds must be directly related to the project and spent concurrently with EPIC funds.

	Q.15
	Can match funds be valued in OEM (original equipment manufacturer) donations or EPIC time or does it need to be flat currency?

	A.15
	As indicated in Section I.K., match funds include cash or non-cash contributions. Non-cash contributions can include the value of personnel, goods, and services. This can include equipment, but the value of the contribution must be documented using current market or book values, prorated for its use in the project, and depreciated or amortized over the term of the project using generally accepted accounting principles. Please see Section I.K of the GFO manual for descriptions of eligible match funding sources. The type (e.g., cash versus non-cash) will be considered when awarding points for Scoring Criterion 8 in Section IV.F of the GFO manual.

	Q.16
	a. I understand that EPIC funded demonstrations and a minimum number of testbeds must be in IOU territory. Is it acceptable to have matching funds spent on additional demonstrations and testbeds in non-IOU territory and in non-CA markets? 
b. Does match funding spent outside of CA impact scoring?

	A.16
	a. It is acceptable to have match funds spent on additional demonstrations and test beds in non-IOU territories or non-California markets. However, the applicant must demonstrate how these non-CA-IOU demonstrations and test beds will meet the purpose and focus of the solicitation and benefit California electric IOU ratepayers as described in Section I. 
b. Match funding spent in the form of demonstrations and test beds in non-CA IOU territories are considered in-kind match and scored according to Scoring Criterion 6 in Section IV.F. of the solicitation manual. 

	Q.17
	a. Do the projects in the Year 1 work plan have to be one year or can they be multiple years?
b. If they are multiple years, how is the funding split in the budget of Table 1 of the solicitation? 

	A.17
	a. The projects in the Year 1 work plan must start in the first year but can run multiple years. 
b. You must describe which tasks will begin in the first year under the Technical Approach Section in Attachment 3 with an estimated budget for the first year using task budget shown in Table X of the Budget and Cost Effectiveness section of Attachment 3. The EPIC funds spent in year 1 cannot exceed the amounts listed in Table, Section I.C. of the GFO manual. Table X in Attachment 3 will be amended to include columns to identify work plan year activities and estimates of ARD and TDD funding.

	Q.18
	Are you accepting proposals with Sub-contractors from outside California? 

	A.18
	Yes. Proposals can include subcontractors from outside of California. Please refer to the responses to questions 5, 7, and 11 regarding the scoring impact of spending EPIC funds outside of California.

	Q.19
	I am located outside of CA and have been requested to join a proposal writing with couple of companies and universities from California. However, I am not sure whether your office considers such applications or not. If it is OK, will such a proposal receive less points as part of scoring criteria for involving sub-contractor from outside California? 

	A.19
	See response to Question #18

	Q.20
	a. How should vendors, who would like to propose individual research projects to be conducted as part of the California Flexible Load Research and Deployment Hub, respond to this solicitation to get involved? 
b. If I'm understanding it correctly, they could not respond directly and would need to partner with a prime contractor to be included as a proposed project for the overall Hub solicitation response. Is that correct? 
c. Is the Empower Innovation site intended to try to provide matching like this?

	A.20
	a. Though vendors are not prohibited from responding directly to the solicitation as the prime contractor, they must explain how they can fulfill the requirements in Section I of the GFO manual. It is anticipated that the Hub will bring together a multidisciplinary team of experts from multiple sectors, including manufacturers and vendors, with the goal of having sufficient technical, business, and market expertise to achieve the objectives listed in Section I.A. It is uncertain how vendors focused on their own technologies would be able to consider competing technologies and strategies as required by the GFO.  
b. As indicated previously, vendors could respond as the prime contractor, but they may be better suited to be a subcontractor and team member.
c. The Empower Innovation site was created precisely for the purpose of facilitating connections between potential prime contractors and potential subs, vendors, and other parties that can be part of a research team submitting a proposal.

	Q.21
	How does the CEC see the IOU’s engaging with the HUB? Many of us have received third party invitations. We would like to engage in the research. We would like some recommendations and suggestions on how we should participate. 

	A.21
	See response to Question #4.

	Q.22
	Will there be any impacts on points in the scoring if cost-share funds are used for research activities outside California, as long as the value is provided back to California?

	A.22
	There may be no impact to scoring criterion 3, Impacts and Benefits for California IOU ratepayers. However, it will depend on the explanation provided in Attachment 3 of how activities outside of California will benefit CA electric IOU ratepayers. See also response to questions 5, 7, 11, and 17.

	Q.23
	Is Attachment 11 (Project Performance Metrics) due during the time of submission, or during award?

	A.23
	The initial draft of Attachment 11 is due prior to the kickoff meeting.  Please refer to subtask 1.12 in the Scope of Work template.

	Q.24
	Match funds: Under scoring criterion 8a., points are given on the proposed cash match relative to total match. 
a. Is this applicable for only the first 1.8 mm cost share? For example, if we provided $1.8 mm cash match (and zero in-kind), would we get 5 points? 
b. On the other hand, if we provided $1.8 mm in cash match and $1.8 mm in in-kind (totaling $3.6 mm), would we get only 3 points? 
c. Under 8b., would the above examples get us zero points and 5 points? It will be nice if you can provide some illustrative examples for 8a. and 8b.

	A.24
	For this solicitation, a minimum match of $1.8 million is required.
[image: ]Scoring criterion 8 has two parts:  
· 8a provides points only if the match includes cash (includes both the minimum and the amount exceeding the minimum). Applicants will receive the maximum points (5) if they provide at least 80% cash match with a sliding scale for those providing less cash match as shown in the table on the left. The formula is: [amount of cash match]/ [[cash + in kind match] = percentage of proposed cash match.
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· 8b provides points if the match exceeds the minimum requirements. For 8b, both cash and in-kind are considered. For those exceeding the minimum match by 80% or more, they will receive the maximum points (5) with a sliding scale for those providing less than 80% as shown in the table on the right.
 
Here are the responses to the questions
a. Yes, that is correct. If you only provide $1.8M (the solicitation minimum) in cash match, then you will receive 5 points from criterion 8a and zero points from criterion 8b.
b. If you provide $1.8M in cash and $1.8M as in-kind, then your percent of cash match relative to the total match is 50% ($1.8M/($3.6M) and you will receive 3 points for criterion 8a. Since you are exceeding the minimum match requirement by 100%, you will also receive 5 points for criterion 8b. The total points under this scenario will be 8 points (3 points for criterion 8a +5 points for criterion 8b).
c. Under 8b, here are the points for the two scenarios identified in your question.
a. You provide $1.8M in match.  As this is the minimum match required in the solicitation, you will receive zero points for criterion 8b.
b. You provide $3.6M in match. This amount exceeds the minimum match required by 100%. You will receive 5 points for criterion 8b.  

	Q.25
	In addition to the primary work of field-testing and demonstrating a portfolio of signal-responsive and demand flexible devices, the solicitation manual also calls out a range of other topics and goals.  These include technology usability and actual use; customers’ acceptance and adoption; program theories, logic models and barriers to adoption; strategies for addressing barriers; assuring equity, securing benefits and minimizing negative impacts on disadvantaged and low-income communities; energy and technology affordability; plans to build capacity in underserved communities through technology innovation and deployment; scaling technologies for significant market impact; and budgeting for knowledge transfer activities.  Please confirm that these factors should be addressed in the design of proposals, work plans and the expertise of team members?

	A.25
	Yes, these topics and goals must be addressed in the proposal (in the Technical Approach and Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources sections of the Project Narrative, Attachment 3) and the work plans, and supported by the credentials of the team members that are assembled.

	Q.26
	Please clarify whether “multidisciplinary” approaches and teams means a range of stakeholders represented on a TAC (e.g., utilities, businesses, laboratories), or multiple relevant science and technology disciplines working together on the R&D, or possibly both?

	A.26
	The goal is both. The team that the applicant must assemble will be experts from multiple relevant disciplines working together on the research development and deployment projects conducted by the Hub. The recipient must assemble a Technical Advisory Committee with membership representing multiple areas of expertise that provides feedback and guidance on the research to maximize the potential for commercialization and benefits to California ratepayers.

	Q.27
	Can one of the multiple demonstration sites be in a municipal utility service territory? 

	A.27
	No.  All demonstration sites must be within CA IOU service territories. Please see section I.C. of the solicitation manual.  See also response to Question #16; note that a laboratory environment or “test bed” is not considered a “demonstration site”.

	Q.28
	For pilot testing first in the lab prior to the field, can the lab be outside of CA?

	A.28
	Pilot testing in labs outside of California is allowed but will impact Scoring Criterion 6 for funds spent in California if using EPIC funds for those activities. It is encouraged that recipients use match funds for sites and activities outside of California.  See response to Question #16.



Technical Questions
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.29
	Does the scope include buildings, storage, and EVs only, or industry, agriculture and water also?

	A.29
	The scope includes buildings, storage, and EVs. The industrial, agricultural, and water sectors are not included in this solicitation; however, some technologies researched under this solicitation may also be applicable to the industrial, agricultural, and water sectors.

	Q.30
	Does the portfolio of technologies include thermal storage or only battery storage?

	A.30
	Both thermal and battery storage are applicable for this solicitation.

	Q.31
	Is the demonstration of DR technologies which can be fully integrated into the CAISO market preferred or encouraged?

	A.31
	Demonstration of technologies that can be fully integrated into the CAISO market is encouraged. However, most customer loads are likely unsuitable for full integration into wholesale markets. Thus, the hub should focus most of its effort on developing and demonstrating technologies that facilitate customer response to dynamic prices and other retail grid signals.  To the extent that a supply-side approach can be developed and implemented quickly--and a demonstration could be in place providing grid services during the first year--such an approach would be encouraged.

	Q.32
	What are the early stages that was just mentioned in the response from CEC?

	A.32
	 “Early stage” refers to first year activities.

	Q.33
	Do you encourage the concept of the microgrid for the potential energy hub? If so, is it preferable for California’s utilities?

	A.33
	The "Hub" is intended to be a virtual research collaboration, not a physical demonstration site.  While all the technologies that could be included for development in this research could probably be used in a microgrid setting, the goal is to develop and demonstrate technologies applicable to all customers.  However, a test site that functions as a microgrid would be acceptable, so long as the effort and expense required to make it a fully functional microgrid does not divert resources from the primary focus of facilitating load flexibility. See also response to Question #55. 

	Q.34
	Are the DR resources limited to behind-the-meter set-up or can distribution-grid resources also be used to meet flexibility objectives?

	A.34
	The focus of this solicitation is to develop and evaluate behind the meter resources and assess how they affect grid stability, reliability, and resource planning while reducing cost to the customer and maintaining or improving the customer experience.  Distribution grid resources are not in scope for this solicitation.

	Q.35
	What is the point of load management price signals in the first year if CAISO dispatch is preferred?

	A.35
	Development of signal responsive technologies will help advance the efforts being undertaken with the Load Management Standards proceeding where a demand automation system is being developed and tested. See also response to Question #31.

	Q.36
	Is the Hub a virtual hub (e.g. data warehouse) or a physical hub (e.g. IoT gateway that enables technology)?

	A.36
	The Hub is a virtual research collaboration of experts from multiple disciplines (as described in Section I.C. of the solicitation manual) working as a team to complete the work identified in Section I of the GFO and described in the Scope of Work. See also response to Question #33.

	Q.37
	The GFO says “Applicants must identify, describe, and determine baseline values and targets for performance metrics applicable to the project technologies and strategies proposed in the Project Narrative.” Are the metrics, baselines, and targets expected to be presented in the proposal, or are they to be developed as part of the project work?

	A.37
	The performance metrics and baseline values described in Section I.C. of the GFO manual must be discussed in Attachment 3, Project Narrative, under Technical Approach and included in in the SOW.  The purpose is to clearly describe what is being measured and establish a starting point so that progress can be tracked. Section I.C. of the GFO manual erroneously referenced the Project Narrative as Attachment 4, when it should have been Attachment 3. An addendum will correct this error and reference the Project Narrative as Attachment 3. 

	Q.38
	The GFO discusses modeling technology impacts in the context of “current and future renewable penetration scenarios”. Should we take “current” to mean current business-as-usual expectations, or present-day penetration? If the latter, what is the intended purpose of assessing future technologies in the context of the rapidly evolving present-day generation stack?

	A.38
	“Penetration” would be an example of a metric, “present day penetration” would be an example of a baseline value.   “Current” means both current values and current expectations for trends (penetration level, for example) under existing State policy.  Progress made against currently expected renewable resource penetration and efficiency adoption scenarios would be measured as additional adoption or impact, or reduced cost of achieving currently expected changes, or both.  Grid needs will evolve as current state policies regarding renewables, building and transportation electrification, energy efficiency and demand flexibility, and carbon emissions are implemented. The intent is that the applicant consider that what makes sense for customers will evolve as well. Ideally, some effort at developing implementation strategies, control technologies, and customer devices that can evolve with grid needs is expected.

	Q.39
	Today’s EV’s tend to be passenger vehicles. Is the inclusion of EVs in the CalFlexHub emphasizing passenger EVs and not large truck fleets, busses, or long-haul trucks?

	A.39
	The inclusion of EVs in CalFlexHub is to look at the impacts of EV charging on demand flexibility for buildings. It is up to the applicant to describe which is the best EV classification for inclusion in the research to achieve the CalFlexHub objectives.

While EV charging will be part of building loads in the future, and thus could be included as part of a comprehensive building load flexibility strategy, it should not be a primary focus of this research.  Thus, demonstration and development of dedicated EV charging facilities is outside of the scope of this solicitation.

	Q.40
	Is EV charging only that which occurs at residential and commercial buildings? That is, not included sites (e.g. service stations or street side charging) that are not part of a building?

	A.40
	See response to Question #39

	Q.41
	Is charging for smaller vehicles than passenger cars in scope? (e.g. e-bikes, motorcycles, neighborhood vehicles, wheelchairs, forklifts).

	A.41
	Charging for vehicles smaller than passenger cars, such as motorcycles, neighborhood vehicles, forklifts, etc. is in scope. These modes of transportation would be considered as smaller loads that could provide demand flexibility when aggregated with other building loads or similar transportation loads.

	Q.42
	There are many technologies at TRL 9 that could support load flexibility but require a significant effort to deploy at scale. Should these be considered within the scope of the TRL 6-8 research here?

	A.42
	For demonstration and deployment projects, we are only looking at advancing technologies from TRL 6-8. Technologies at TRL 9 have had sufficient deployments to be near commercialization. The focus of EPIC funding from the Applied Research and Technology Deployment and Demonstration categories is on technology development and not market facilitation.

	Q.43
	Is the list of technology at page 11 (heat pump water heaters, refrigeration equipment, thermostats and HVAC controls...) supposed to just get the Load Management Standards price signal or is it a list of technology to test for TRL 6-8?

	A.43
	The focus of EPIC research funds should be on innovative strategies and pre-commercial technologies; that is, devices at a TRL level between 3 and 8. While innovative strategies and systems that include some commercially-available components (i.e. devices and software such as those at TRL 9 or 10 listed on page 11) can be included, EPIC funds may not be used to purchase those components. Match funds and in-kind contributions must be used for these technologies that are commercially available.

	Q.44
	Is flexibility only of interest if it’s automated, or is manual/behavior change of interest as well?

	A.44
	Manual interaction and behavioral change are both of interest, particularly in assessing customer design preferences and adoption potential. However, the preference is to facilitate automated responses with minimal ongoing human interaction.

	Q.45
	The GFO requires ARD projects to be located at 1 or more test sites, while TDD projects at 2 or more. Additionally, it requires sampling sizes to be “sufficient to provide robust impact estimates” and acknowledges the cost tradeoffs of increasing sample size to achieve statistical reliability (page 11). Is it fair to assume that this “sample size” mentioned is about the duration/frequency of tests, and not about achieving statistical reliability through multiple sites as that seems prohibitively expensive? Are there any other ways applicants should consider the meaning of sample size in the requirements listed in the GFO Application manual?

	A.45
	The GFO requires that the applicant identify at least one (1) test site for ARD and at least two (2) deployment sites for TDD projects at the time of application submission. The recipient will add more sites to evaluate additional use cases or improve impact estimate reliability. The applicant should articulate preliminary estimates of the number of sites in Project Narrative (Attachment 3 under Technical Approach) and include the cost of acquiring additional sites and related activities in the budget (Attachment 6). References to sample size and statistical reliability are about frequency and duration for testing a particular technology. However, where site characteristics are associated with substantial variation (for example, for thermostat behavior in residential buildings), then the expectation is that many sites and a carefully constructed sample frame would be required to estimate a population parameter.

	Q.46
	The GFO mentions an “internet application programming interface (API)”. Is this just a description of the interface, or also a software implementation of the server device that provides the data? If the latter, is this a server just for use by the project for the research, or for use by the general public?

Later the GFO notes “The API must be compatible with the Load Management Standards demand automation system” - doesn’t this imply that this system will expose an API and thus define it?

	A.46
	The CEC will define a demand automation system API for use by the general public, however, the timing of completion is uncertain. The bidder will be asked to be flexible in defining or describing the API accordingly.

	Q.47
	Does work on technology communication standards map into the ARD or the TDD distinction for budget allocation, or is that a separate set of activities?

	A.47
	All research project activities should either be ARD or TDD. The applicant will need to define what communication standards technology research is needed and estimate its current TRL.

	Q.48
	Is the reference to “digital FM sub-band broadcasts from up to three radio stations” for 3 stations that cover the whole state, or 3 stations for covering any location, or something else? And is the 95% criterion for just the broadcast signal or the combination of FM broadcast and other communications technology (e.g. broadband Internet)?

	A.48
	The three stations are to cover the test location(s), not the entire state. The 95% criterion is just for the broadcast signal.

	Q.49
	On page 10, does “Coordinate development of technologies that can respond to the Load Management Standards price or GHG emissions signals and technologies” refer to the various flexible load technologies, or something else?

	A.49
	It is in reference to the flexible load technologies.

	Q.50
	The bulleted paragraph (page 11) that begins “The portfolio of technologies tested should include…” is indented under the bullet/paragraph above it. Is it intended to be a subsidiary, or is it an independent set of activities? For the most part they seem independent.

	A.50
	It is intended to be a subsidiary of the above bullet. The bulleted section you reference is meant to provide additional clarification and examples of the portfolio of responsive technologies. This is a subsidiary of the original bullet that starts on page 10 which starts by indicating that the Hub will “Test a portfolio of responsive technologies using both internet-based communications and a broadcast signal...”

	Q.51
	Is the focus of the GFO on end-use devices used by mass market customers (e.g., residential and small commercial) like pumps and heaters as well as plug loads in the home and small commercial buildings? Many other equipment in large commercial buildings (e.g., chillers, VRF, RTUs, cold storage units, etc.) don’t apply to mass markets. To what extent are they of interest?

	A.51
	The GFO is focused on residential and commercial buildings, both small and large.  All the technologies mentioned in this question, including chilllers, etc. for large commercial buildings, are of interest. However, this GFO is not focused on industrial, agriculture, or water sectors, such as cold storage units.

	Q.52
	Some end-use devices found in mass market buildings (residential and small commercial) like plug loads are also found in large commercial buildings.  To what extent is pilot testing in large commercial buildings of interest?

	A.52
	Pilot testing in large commercial buildings is of equal interest. 

	Q.53
	During the workshop, CEC responded that the GFO was focused on buildings, storage and EVs (and not industrial, ag and water). Are Warehouses (including refrigerated warehouses) considered as buildings? How about data centers?

	A.53
	Industrial warehouses (such as refrigerated warehouses) and data centers are outside the scope of this solicitation.

	Q.54
	Are the evaluation criteria and performance metrics applied to communications infrastructure, or just flexible loads?

	A.54
	The evaluation criteria and performance metrics as described on Page 13 of the GFO manual apply to any developed, demonstrated, or deployed technology that enables demand flexibility to determine which direction to refine or direct the next phase of research. This includes both communications and flexible load technologies.

	Q.55
	Should we include both small (distributed) generation and utility scale generation in ARD and TDD activities?

	A.55
	Utility-scale generation is not to be a focus of this research. Integration of distributed generation should be considered when designing demand flexible research activities but is not eligible for EPIC funding under this GFO. The primary focus for Hub research should be on enabling load flexibility for end-use equipment and devices.

	Q.56
	The solicitation states: “Develop advanced signal-responsive (price, marginal greenhouse gas emissions, etc.) and interoperable technology solutions that enable commercialization and market adoption of flexible demand resources”. Are these technologies hardware (e.g. a new type of storage), software (e.g. a communication protocol or an optimization algorithm) or both? Also, should the emphasis be on things that will be relevant in the next 5, 10 or 20 years?

	A.56
	Both hardware and software are considered in this GFO. Greater emphasis should be put on pre-commercial technology solutions that address the greatest needs and help California achieve its decarbonization and electrification goals.

	Q.57
	The solicitation states: Evaluate the effects of flexible load on wholesale market dispatch decisions (and similar statements concerning “at scale” performance). This is hard to do at pilot or demonstration scale, so is there a modeling / simulation component expected in the ARD part of the work?

	A.57
	Modeling and simulation activities are allowable components of the projects conducted by the Hub. However, the primary focus should be on technology development.

	Q.58
	Page 11 lists technology project – “Evaluate the effects of flexible load on wholesale market dispatch decisions.” However, the solicitation is not clear if this is an ARD or TDD focus. Can CEC elaborate if this is an ARD or a TDD focus?   

	A.58
	The focus is primarily ARD.
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Are the IOUs exempt from applying or partnering in this GFO?
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Though 


IOUs 


could apply to this GFO


 


as a prime


, 


they must explain how 


they can 


achieve and meet the requirements, objectives and focus of the 


hub as described in 


Section I of the 


solicitation 


manual


 


(also known as 


GFO, or GFO manual)


. 


IOUs may be 


better suited


 


to participate as project 


partners 


such as


 


providing support in obtaining 


sites, accessing meter 


data, providing match funds, facilitating CPUC approvals, and contributing 


technical and program expertise


.
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Are companies from outside the USA eligible to apply?


 




   

 

   

  GFO - 19 - 30 9 :    California Flexible Load Research and  Deployment Hub   Questions and Answers   Administrative/General Questions  

Number  Question/Answer  

Q. 1  When will a recording of this session be published?  

A. 1  A   recording of the pre - application workshop can be found in the following  link:  https://www.energy.ca.gov/event/funding - workshop/2020 - 09/pre - application - workshop - gfo - 19 - 309 - california - flexible - load  

Q. 2  Can you publish the list of the zoom participants?   

A. 2  Yes, the list of participants from the pre - application workshop can be found  in the following link:  https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020 - 09/gfo - 19 - 309 - california - flexible - load - research - and - deployment - hub  

Q. 3  The solicitation manual  states on page 28 that "“Match funds” do not  include: CEC awards, EPIC funds received from other sources. . . "   T his  means that IOU EPIC research funds (non - CEC) cannot be used as  match.  Is that correct?  

A. 3  Correct. EPIC funds from the investor - owned ut ilities (IOUs) cannot be  used as match funds for this solicitation.  

Q. 4  Are the IOUs exempt from applying or partnering in this GFO?  

A. 4  Though  IOUs  could apply to this GFO   as a prime ,  they must explain how  they can  achieve and meet the requirements, objectives and focus of the  hub as described in  Section I of the  solicitation  manual   (also known as  GFO, or GFO manual) .  IOUs may be  better suited   to participate as project  partners  such as   providing support in obtaining  sites, accessing meter  data, providing match funds, facilitating CPUC approvals, and contributing  technical and program expertise .  

Q. 5  Are companies from outside the USA eligible to apply?  

